

Karen E. Ford Esq.  
SW Ocean Ave & Mission, Suite 208  
P.O. Box 287  
Carmel-by-the-Sea, California 93921-0287  
831-250-6433  
Fax 831-250-6844  
[karen@fordslaw.com](mailto:karen@fordslaw.com)  
SBN 092452  
Attorney for Plaintiff Jeremy Gillette

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE DISTRICT COURT OF OREGON  
PENDELTON DIVISION

JEREMY GILLETTE, an individual,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UMATILLA COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #1;  
JAMES C. FERRARIS; FERRARIS  
INVESTIGATIONS & CONSULTING, LLC

Defendants.

Case No.: No. 2:24-cv-00948

COMPLAINT

Civil Rights Action - ORS 659A.199  
Whistleblower Retaliation ORS 659A.203  
False Claims Act 31 U.S.C.A. § 3730

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

**NATURE OF THE ACTION**

1. Plaintiff brings this action to remedy violations of Plaintiff's rights under Federal law and Oregon State employment law. Plaintiff seeks lost wages, compensatory damages, equitable relief, applicable penalties, attorney fees, and costs.

## **PARTIES**

2. Plaintiff Jeremy Gillette (“Gillette” or “Plaintiff”) is a citizen of the United States and a resident of Hermiston, Umatilla County, Oregon.

3. Defendant Umatilla County Fire District #1 (“UCFD1” or “Defendant”) is a Fire District with main offices located in Hermiston, Oregon. UCFD1 provides fire, rescue, and emergency medical services for the citizens of the district, as well as ambulance service to the cities of Echo and Umatilla. At all relevant times, Defendant was Plaintiff’s employer and its employees and supervisors, as their conduct is alleged herein, were acting within the course and scope of their employment with Defendant.

4. Defendants James C. Ferraris; Ferraris Investigations & Consulting, LLC (hereinafter sometimes referred to jointly as “Ferraris”) are engaged in the business of conducting investigations. Ferraris conducted an investigation of facts and events concerning Plaintiff and his employment which caused and led directly to termination of his employment.

## **JURISDICTION AND VENUE**

5. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s federal claims set forth in this complaint pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, including, without limitation, his claim under the False Claims Act 31 U.S.C.A. § 3730. This Court should exercise supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims stated herein pursuant to 28 USC § 1367.

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant UCFD1 because Defendant’s principal place of business is in Umatilla County Oregon, and because it conducts regular, sustained business activity in Umatilla County, Oregon and because the unlawful conduct alleged herein was committed in the District of Oregon.

7. This Court has personal jurisdiction over defendant Ferraris Investigations & Consulting LLC because Plaintiff is informed and believes and alleges thereon that it does

business and has its principal place of business in this jurisdiction. It operates in Oregon including in Umatilla County and it took the actions at issue in this action in Umatilla County, Oregon. Its conduct at issue in this action occurred in Umatilla County.

8. This Court has personal jurisdiction over defendant James Ferraris as Plaintiff is informed and believes and alleges thereon that he is a resident of this jurisdiction and he operates a business in Oregon including in Umatilla County. His conduct at issue in this action occurred in Umatilla County.

9. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because the claims arise in this Judicial District.

#### INTRA-DISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

10. The appropriate assignment for this action is the Pendleton Division (Division 2) pursuant to Local Rule 3-2 because the Parties are all to be found within Umatilla County and most or all of the conduct complained of occurred there.

#### FACTS COMMON TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

11. Gillette was formerly employed by UCFD1 for over nine years as an EMT-Paramedic/Lieutenant (EMT). Gillette started at Umatilla County Fire District #1 in June of 2014. Over the years of his employment he received excellent performance reviews and was promoted. As of 2022 he had risen to the position of lieutenant and was being promoted to Battalion Chief effective January 1, 2023. As a lieutenant he was responsible to supervise and evaluate the work of other members of the department working under him and to counsel or warn subordinates in connection with their work.

12. Gillette's Performance Review dated 12/20/2016 by Lt Ed Clark rated him as "Meets Standards" in all areas. The comments include the following:

"You are able to perform patient care appropriately, using the proper protocols, **treating the patients with respect** and you write a pertinent narrative for the PCR. ... You have a positive attitude... You are able to listen to all the facts and make a sound judgement when needed.... You are able to

take criticism and improve when needed, you fit in while on shift being able to communicate with all shift mates.” (emphasis added)

13. Gillette’s Performance Review dated 12/20/2017 by BC Davis rated him as Meets Standards or Exceeds Standards in all areas. The comments include the following:

“I have been impressed with Jeremy's ability to combine his experience as a firefighter and his family values into our guys. He has become a **role model and a confidant for many of the guys**. I think he is **truly respected by all**.... Jeremy has always done well to foster a family environment on shift. The guys seem to have responded very well with his approach. He handles situations fairly, with an open mind.... Jeremy is also open to other opinions and differing reasoning's. Shows a lot of maturity in this regard.... **Jeremy has done very well with our probationary firefighters training. ... Proven himself to be a solid leader**, ... ....Jeremy is very personable. Likes to talk, prides himself in trying to figure people out. **Good rapport with all his subordinates**.... I believe Jeremy **has the respect of the guys**....He handles situations with **maturity and a level head**....Jeremy’s experienced and maturity serve him well when dealing with conflicts.” (emphasis added)

The closing comment states:

“Jeremy has done well stepping into the role of Lt. His love for training has really benefited the shift! . He has established **great rapport** with the firefighters, has become **like a father figure to many of the younger guys**. I have enjoyed having Jeremy on shift, when he is here the daily activities always run smooth.” (emphasis added)

14. Gillette’s performance evaluation dated 2/24/2018 by BC Davis rated him as “Meets Standards” or “Above Standards” in all areas with the majority being “Above Standards”. The comments included the following:

“**Very competent company officer**. Done well when operating as BC2 I. Good command presence and thought process. ... I have been impressed with Jeremy's ability to combine his experience as a firefighter and his family values into our guys. He **has become a role model and a confident for many of the guys**. I think he is **truly respected by all**.... He **handles situations fairly and with an open mind**. Jeremy always seems to have a good feel for the mood on shift. Proven to be a very competent Lt. ... Confident in his decision making process. Jeremy is also open to other opinions and differing reasoning's. Shows a lot of **maturity** in this regard. ... **Jeremy has done very well with our probationary firefighters training**. They all finished course work early with

his help.... Proven himself to be a **solid leader**, encourages the guys to think for themselves.... Jeremy is very personable. Likes to talk, prides himself in trying to figure people out. **Good rapport with all his subordinates....** I believe **Jeremy has the respect of the guys**. Firefighters from all shifts seem to seek him out for counsel on all types of scenarios.... He handles situations with maturity and a level head.” (emphasis added)

15. Gillette’s performance evaluation dated 1/7/2019 by BC Davis gave him the highest rating of Above Standards in all areas. The comments stated:

“Very competent company officer. Done well when operating as BC21. Good command presence and thought process. ... **Jeremy is often sought out by the guys for advice. The guys on all shifts seem to value his opinion.** His leadership and family values continue to help him excel as a Lieutenant.”... Jeremy has always done well to foster a family environment on shift. **The guys seem to have responded very well with his approach. He handles situations fairly, with an open mind....** Confident in his decision making process. Jeremy is also open to other opinions and differing reasoning's. Shows a lot of maturity in this regard.” (emphasis added)

Under Supervisory Duties in the 2019 performance evaluation he was rated as “Meets Standards” or “Above Standards” in every area. The comments in this area included the following:

“Jeremy is **good with the guys**, he always explains the reasons why we do something. He pushes the guys to be better. Able to reward and redirect well when improvement is needed.... Proven himself to be a **solid leader**, encourages the guys to think for themselves. ... Jeremy is **very personable**. Likes to talk, prides himself in trying to figure people out. **Good rapport with all his subordinates.** ... Jeremy has the respect of the shift. Positive leader.... He handles situations with maturity and a level head.... **Jeremy's experience and maturity serve him well when dealing with conflicts.**” (emphasis added)

16. In Gillette’s performance review dated 1/8/2020 by Corey Gorham his manager spoke about him in glowing terms.

“Jeremy is very comfortable performing in a company officer role.”

“Jeremy maintains a positive and fun environment on shift but not at the expense of the districts readiness.”

“Jeremy does a good job at motivating the company and others involved. He does so by keeping the work fun and providing a good example.”

“Jeremy does a good job at relaying information to his company in a positive way and in a way that creates by in and understanding of the changes.”

“Jeremy manages conflict without jumping to conclusions and tries to understand all side before coming to a decision.”

“Jeremy has a way of delivering information to crews that is positive.”

“Jeremy is a good resource to have on shift. He is a good company officer that understands the tactics employed on scenes. He **brings a positive and fun attitude to shift**. He desires to improve his knowledge and skills by seeking out shift training and making sure that it's a priority on duty. He **works well with others** during this training and provides for an environment that promotes learning. On his own doing he took on the Blazemark program and provided training to all shift. He is also the Rope Rescue Team Coordinator”

17. Gillette’s 2/3/2021 and 2/28/2022 performance reviews (both by Ed Clark) the form and rating system changed somewhat. Gillette was rated as 3 fair, 4 Good or 5 Excellent. None of the areas was rated as “Needs Improvement” or “Unacceptable”. In fact, most of the ratings were Good or Excellent. Even in the specific areas applicable here the ratings and comments indicate no problems with Gillette’s performance:

Communication and Attitude: The fire officer consistently maintains open communications with subordinates, supervisors and the public through formal reports, memo's, emails, phone, radio and verbal communications. Maintains a professional attitude when in public and at the stations. Demonstrates good listening skills, shows patience and is supportive in all communications.

2/3/2021 (By Edward Clark) rated as 3 Fair with no comments.

2/28/2022 (By BC Clark) “You always keep your supervisors in the loop, documenting appropriately also have the ability to communicate in a appropriate fashion.” Rating 4 Good.

Leadership and Teamwork: Supervisor consistently demonstrates leadership skills and performs their role in a constructive and professional manner and displays a commitment to the team concept. Supervisor acts as a role model for others and accepts and supports team decisions.

2/28/2022 (By BC Ed Clark) “You have a ton of knowledge you just need to figure out a way to get it passed on to the shift during trainings and day to day operations.” Again rated 3 Fair.

18. Nothing in any of the comments in the performance reviews suggests any problem whatsoever in Gillette’s treatment of others or communications with subordinates. In fact, Gillette was so outstanding that he was promoted to the position of lieutenant in March of 2017 and to the position of Battalion Chief effective January 1, 2023.

19. In spring 2022 Gillette reviewing the projections for budgeting purposes used by UCFD. He noticed that the Fire Chiefs’ report was misreporting the number of non-emergency transfers that UCFD1 was taking and not taking. UCFD1 was reporting that it was turning down more transfers than it was by over reporting the number of requests which were received annually. UCFD1 then used this elevated number to create a monetary loss in that area of service. Gillette prepared a written report and a slide presentation highlighting this discrepancy and submitted it to management of UCFD1. Gillette made the presentation with the slides in April of 2022. After the presentation Gillette received feedback from Richard Cearns about it saying that it was considered offensive. Richard Cearns is an administrative chief of UCFD1 at this time but was the Div. Chief of Training in April 2022.

20. UDFC1 used these figures in reporting to various agencies and to apply for funding such as the federal SAFER grants. Gillette concluded that these or similar inaccurate figures had been used in the past to support grant requests and other reports. The grants can be worth millions of dollars in funding staffing costs. It is Gillette’s belief that UCFD1 had been using these false "losses" to apply for federal grants for staffing purposes.

21. After Gillette exposed these inaccurate figures UCFD1 extraordinarily failed to apply for SAFER funding in the next cycle. The Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response Grants (SAFER) was created to provide funding directly to fire departments and volunteer firefighter interest organizations to help them increase or maintain the number of

trained, "front line" firefighters available in their communities. The goal of SAFER is to enhance the local fire departments' abilities to comply with staffing, response and operational standards established by the NFPA (NFPA 1710 and/or NFPA 1720). No fire department would ever forego applying for such funding as it is too valuable. The grants can be worth millions of dollars. Gillette believes and alleges thereon that UCFD1 avoided submitting applications for such funding because the fraud had been exposed.

22. After his reporting of the budgeting discrepancies Gillette was suddenly subjected to unfair and discriminatory criticisms. He was subjected to a hostile work environment in which he was criticized unfairly and harassed in his work. This treatment was discrimination and retaliation for his reporting the budgeting discrepancies.

23. After his reporting of the budgeting discrepancies and days before his promotion to Battalion Chief was to take effect on or about December 19, 2022 Gillette was called in and told he was on administrative leave but he was given no details of any accusation against him. He was notified that he was being investigated for alleged "bullying" "hostile work environment" "intimidation" and "physical contact". Gillette was shocked as he had never done anything like this and had never been counseled or told he had done anything wrong in his dealings with others. The notice did not explain what he was accused of doing or who were the individuals allegedly bullied or intimidated. The notice stated he had potentially violated the UCFD1 policy on harassment. He was placed on paid leave during the investigation. Gillette was expressly denied any union representation in this meeting. The notice did not provide any details of what the accusations against him were or who were the person or persons involved. This action by UCFD1 came as a complete surprise to Gillette. He had always been complimented for his professional treatment of others including subordinates. He had never been counseled or notified of any problems with his treatment of others. He had no idea what the accusations against him might be or who could be involved.



24. UCFD1 representatives promised that any investigation would be kept completely confidential.

25. Immediately after placing him on leave UCFD1 communicated to all employees and volunteers that he was banned from the workplace and under investigation. This information was promptly spread by those who received it from UCFD1 to others in the community. This was a disclosure of the supposedly confidential investigation. It also created a false impression that Gillette was guilty of some kind of fraud, theft or similar serious misconduct. These statements created a cloud on his professional reputation and career. There was no legitimate need to provide this information to these people and the impression created was severely damaging to Gillette and his personal and professional reputation.

26. Gillette was provided with no details as to the accusation against him. He was barred from UCFD1 property and was told he could not discuss with anyone at UCFD1. He was deeply concerned and upset by the accusations and was prohibited from finding out anything about the accusations. This situation caused him severe emotional distress.

27. Management of UCFD1 was well aware that the accusations against Gillette were false and were directly contrary to Gillette's job performance over the years.

28. Gillette is informed and believes and alleges thereon that UCFD1 retained the services of FERRARIS to investigate the accusations against Gillette and to make recommendations as to what actions should be taken. UCFD1 was responsible to correctly assign duties to FERRARIS and to supervise his conduct. UCFD1 had an independent duty to conduct a fair and impartial investigation of any allegations against Gillette. FERRARIS eventually created a biased and false written report dated May 23, 2023 in order to justify Gillette's termination (hereinafter the "Report"). The Report was not provided to Gillette until on or about June 30, 2023. The supporting evidence such as audio recordings of witness interviews were not provided until on or about July 6, 2023. Gillette was forced to retain an attorney who made demands for this material in order to obtain it.

29. The investigation was conducted in a biased, unfair, improper, and negligent manner. It was not fair or neutral and was designed as an attack to get rid of Gillette. FERRARIS delayed until on or about March 4, 2023 to even speak to Gillette. At this time Gillette learned, for the first time, that the accusation involved a subordinate named Mikiah Hampton. However, even in that interview he was not provided with sufficient details as to exactly what the accusations were as to what he had supposedly done or not done.

30. In 2022 Gillette had been responsible for supervision and evaluation of a newly hired employee, Makiah Hampton. Hampton was undergoing his probationary period. Gillette counseled Hampton about problems with his performance including, without limitation, lack of professionalism, rudeness with patients and others, and poor communication skills with community members and other agencies. He also had an ongoing problem with failure to make timely reports. Hampton had been disciplined and given documented counseling sessions for his behaviors which created complaints from local care providers. After consulting with other managers and with their agreement Gillette told Hampton that his position as firefighter/paramedic was in jeopardy due to performance related issues and given that his probationary period was close to ending. Gillette, as he was required to do as a supervisor, counseled and warned Hampton about his treatment of others. Hampton, apparently resenting the counseling, complained to others, including his girlfriend and in so doing simply made up accusations about Gillette. These accusations were false.

31. Gillette was never unreasonable or inappropriate with Hampton or anyone else in the course of his work for UCFD1. The conclusions stated in the FERRARIS report were biased and unfounded. Gillette believes that UCFD1 instructed FERRARIS to find evidence unfavorable to Gillette, to attack his character and reputation and to reach conclusions that would justify termination.

32. In January 2023 , in order to try to understand the basis of the investigation Gillette made a formal request for all records concerning his employment and concerning

Hampton's job performance. However, all that was provided were the performance evaluations for Gillette described herein. There were no documents produced concerning the accusations or the investigation at issue here of concerning Hampton's job performance.

33. Gillette was not originally provided with a copy of the FERRARIS investigative report until a copy was included with the June 15, 2023 Notice that he was to be terminated.. The copy of the Report he received did not have its attachments which were the evidence on which the report supposedly was based. These crucial materials were not provided until requested by Gillette. They were not finally produced until on or about July 6, 2023. His response to the report and was due on July 13, 2023 so Gillette did not have a fair opportunity to review the materials, gather his own evidence and respond.

34. The Report is a biased and one-sided attack on Gillette intended to justify termination of his employment and to block his promotion to Battalion Chief. The Report generally amounts to nothing more than repetitions of Hampton's supposed complaints about his supervisor. None of the witnesses was in a position to corroborate the negative aspects of Hampton's version of events. No witness had direct knowledge of any physical contact between Gillette and Hampton. No witness had direct knowledge of any threat supposedly made by Gillette towards Hampton. At most, a few people said that Hampton had reported such things to them. However, even the hearsay reports to others were not consistent, a fact which the Report fails to note or consider. The issue comes down to contradictory statements by Hampton and Gillette as to what transpired between them, As Gillette has a long and excellent history which includes no progressive discipline and no allegations of the kind raised here, his credibility would normally have been recognized and credited. As a short-term probationary employee with a documented record of inappropriate interactions with others, Hampton's version of events should not be credited. Also, Hampton told several different versions of specific events he alleges which belies his credibility. Gillette should not be terminated for simply counseling an employee reporting to him as he was required to do. Under normal circumstances a valuable

employee like Gillette would not have been terminated based such hearsay reports with a single source: Hampton.

35. In the course of the improperly conducted investigation Defendants went so far as to attempted to recruit a former employee to participate in the investigation to attack Gillette's credibility and character. The employee's name is Gabe Billings. There were no complaints in the matter supposedly under investigation which concerned or involved Gabe Billings and he was not an employee at the time of any of the mentioned accusations. This action clearly reflects a search for any possible damaging accusation against Gillette rather than an impartial investigation of specific complaints. Another example of such "fishing for dirt" was that Ferraris went so far as to investigate whether Gillette threw a coffee cup at a former student named Mason Manary. No one, including Mason, said that this happened.

36. At the same time the investigation deliberately and pointedly ignored information and evidence which would have cast doubt on Hamptons credibility and supported Gillette. For example, Hamptons credibility was not impeached when the District had firsthand and unsolicited information about Hamptons behavior. Cameron Kiokawa was an employee at the time and was a firsthand witness to Hampton's behavior and the instances for which he was counseled. Hampton was treated very differently from Gillette. For example, Cameron Kiokawa reported to the Operations Chief Jimmy Davis that he had knowledge of and witnessed calls for service in which Hampton gave larger than required IV's to patients that made him angry. This is a report of assault which Gillette believes received no attention from Defendants and no action was taken. None of this was considered by Ferraris during the investigation, or included in the investigative report.

37. The investigative report is not neutral or unbiased. The investigator failed to consider key evidence including the disciplinary memo concerning Hampton and ignored Hampton's performance problems in dealing with others. He did not interview witnesses identified by Gillette. He presented the testimony in slanted and biased fashion. He did not

investigate the prior incidents involving Hampton at all. Other key problems with the Investigative Report include, but are not limited to, the following:

None of the incidents reported by Mr. Hampton (Blankenship) were witnessed by another person.

None of the behaviors such as striking or choking have been noted by or witnessed by another person.

The accusations that are discussed with other interviewees are noted as having been told to them by Mr. Hampton.

Misconduct by Hampton was ignored

Factors undermining Hampton's credibility and that of his girlfriend were ignored

Hearsay was ignored

Testimony and evidence in support of Gillette's version of events was ignored

38. On or about June 15, 2023 UCFD1 sent a formal Notice of Potential Termination (hereinafter Notice) to Gillette stating its intent to terminate his employment. The Notice stated that the termination was based on the Report. The abrupt termination was unjustified as it was based on the false and misleading Report. The investigation itself was motivated by a desire by management of UCFD1 to get rid of Gillette and block his promotion to Battalion Chief. The Notice gave as the reason for the termination that Gillette had supposedly mistreated Hampton as stated in the Report.

39. The Notice relied on the Report which was biased and filled with falsehoods. The Notice ignores the fact that the Report is largely based on hearsay statements. Reliance on hearsay is not consistent with due process requirements. The Notice and the actions of UCFD1 ignored the progressive discipline requirements applicable to Gillette. The UCFD1 Rules and Regulations provides specific details about progressive discipline. For the infraction of "Threatening, intimidating, coercing, or interfering with other employees or supervisors on or off District premises." The following progressive discipline is provided.

1st Written warning

2nd Suspension up to 1 work day.

3rd 30 calendar day suspension and/or discharge

Thus, even if the Hampton accusations were taken as true, abrupt termination of Gillette with no prior progressive discipline would violate the UCFD1 Rules and Regulations. No other employee has ever been terminated by UCFD1 with no progressive discipline. This is totally incompatible with past practice of UCFD1.

40. The Notice purported to base the termination of employment on alleged violation of EEO and Harassment Policies. The Harassment policy defines harassment as “unwelcome conduct based on “race, religion, age, gender, national origin, gender orientation or disability.” The situation here does not involve any of these issues. Thus, they provide no support for termination of Gillette’s employment.

41. The grounds for termination stated in the Notice are unsupported. The first is a general statement about credibility. The conclusions stated are not valid and contain inaccurate statements. There is no justification given for crediting Hampton and his girlfriend and discrediting Gillette. There are witnesses who support Gillette such as who supported Gillette and are not mentioned. There are specific reasons to question the credibility of Hampton as he was a probationary employee with a poor record and in danger of failing to complete probation. In addition, Hampton told different versions of key events at different times and to different people. Such inconsistent statements seriously undermines his credibility.

42. The Notice makes specific statements as to accusations against Gillette. However, these accusations are false and not supported by evidence.

43. The Notice stated that UCFD1 intended to terminate Gillette’s employment and that is what it intended to do regardless of what evidence or arguments Gillette might present.

44. Gillette requested the ability to respond to the Report in writing to UCFD1 Chief Scott Stanton. If he had appeared in person the time that would be allotted was very short and it

would not allow time to present all of his evidence. UDCF1 would not agree to a longer meeting. Gillette was told he could not present witnesses or evidence and he could not question witnesses on which his termination was based. Prior to submitting his written response to the Report and protest of the termination.

45. On or about July 7, 2023 Gillette was threatened by UCFD1 that if he did not resign, his certification for his job would be put at risk which would jeopardize his ability to pursue his career at all. UCFD1 stated “If [Gillette] resigns, the only box that must be checked is “resignation.” If this moves to termination, then DPSST will open its own investigation into this, putting his certifications at risk.” The Oregon Department of Public Safety Standards and Training (DPSST) is responsible for certifications of members of fire services in Oregon, including the certifications allowing Gillette to work in his chosen field. At the time the head of DPSST standards and training was, or at least had been, Chief Scott Stanton’s girlfriend. As a result Gillette would not have had a fair or impartial review of the accusations against him, the Report and the evidence. Gillette could not afford to put his future employment at risk.

46. As a result of the threats from UCFD1 and the situation as a whole, Gillette had no choice but to submit a resignation. He submitted his resignation on July 13, 2023. Thereafter UCFD1 refused to take any position on the accusations or whether he would have been terminated. Gillette is sure, given the course of events and the unfairness of the entire process that he would have been terminated had he not resigned and he would he been reported negatively to DPSST.

47. Following his resignation Gillette asked for a determination as to the Notice and the Report from UCFD1. That request was refused. Following his resignation Gillette requested a name clearing hearing to permit him to defend himself from the accusations and the false statements in the Report. He wanted to salvage his professional reputation if possible. UCFD1 refused to allow such a hearing.

48. UCFD1 informed Gillette that the Report and its supporting evidence are public records and would be made available to members of the public who request it. Thus, his career and professional reputation have been seriously damaged.

49. The way in which UCFD1's actions towards Gillette were handled were different than its normal practices and policies. He was treated differently than other employees subjected to counseling or discipline. The investigation was not conducted in a fair, impartial or professional way. The Report and the Notice of Intent to Terminate were a severe overreaction even if the accusations were to be taken as true.

50. Gillette accepted replacement employment. However, the position he took was at a greatly reduced status and compensation than his position as Lieutenant or his position as Battalion Chief.

**FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**(ORS 659A.199 – Retaliation Against Whistleblower)**  
**Against UCFD1**

51. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 50.

52. Pursuant to ORS 659A.199 and ORS 659A.203, it is unlawful employment practice for an employer to retaliate against an employee because the employee has in good faith reported information that the employee believes is evidence of a violation of federal or state law, rule or regulation.

53. Plaintiff reported in good faith what he believes was evidence of violations of state and federal laws, rules or regulations to Defendant, including, without limitation, the following:



- a. That he believed Defendant made misstatements concerning budgeting figures which he reported to UCFD1 management;
- b. That with intent to defraud, UCFD1 created or confirmed another's false impression of law, value, intention or other state of mind and failed to correct a false impression that was previously created or confirmed in violation of ORS 164.085. Plaintiff reported this to UCFD1 management;
- c. That Defendant made false statements in order to obtain public funds in violation of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733. Plaintiff reported these concerns UCFD1 management;
- d. That Defendants committed common law fraud by intentionally misrepresenting material existing fact with knowledge of its falsity.

54. By making such reports, Plaintiff engaged in protected activity.

55. Plaintiff's reports and conduct were a substantial factor in Defendant's decision to take adverse employment actions against Plaintiff, including an investigation, suspension and, ultimately, Plaintiff's constructive discharge. The investigation, the Report, and the Notice of Intent to Terminate, the threats to damage Plaintiff's certifications were an effort to get rid of Gillette and to block his promotion to Battalion Chief.

56. As a result of Defendant's unlawful actions, Plaintiff suffered and will continue to suffer economic damages in the form of lost wages, including back pay, front pay in lieu of reinstatement, and is entitled to recover such lost wages in an amount to be determined at trial.

57. Defendants unlawful actions alleged herein were undertaken with malice and were done intentionally and without just cause or excuse. Defendant's conduct was has shown a reckless and outrageous indifference to a highly unreasonable risk of harm and has acted with a conscious indifference to the health, safety and welfare of others. Accordingly Plaintiff is entitled to an award of punitive damages. Plaintiff seeks punitive damages in the amount of \$1,000,000.

58. As a result of Defendant's unlawful actions, Plaintiff experienced non-economic damages. Plaintiff is entitled to recover non-economic damages in an amount to be determined at trial, but which is alleged to be not more than \$1,000,000.

59. Plaintiff is entitled to his costs, disbursements, pre- and post-judgment interest in the amount of 9% per annum, and reasonable attorney fees incurred herein pursuant to ORS 659A.885 and ORS 82.010.

**SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**( 31 U.S.C.A. § 3730 – Retaliation Against Whistleblower)**  
**Against UCFD1**

60. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 59.

61. As set out above, Gillette discovered that UCFD1 was misrepresenting budget and usage information in reports and in applications for grants and other funding. Gillette reported this to management of UCFD1 including the slide presentation. The Plaintiff's actions and statements alleged herein were lawful acts done in furtherance of the False Claims Act, 31 USCA § 3730.

62. Defendant was aware of his protected activity because, as described herein, statements, information, and reports were directed to management and a slide presentation was made in a meeting in which management was present.

63. Plaintiff is informed and believes and alleges thereon that the Defendant, directly and indirectly, receives funds from the federal government. As set out above these include, without limitation, federal SAFER grants. Plaintiff further alleges on information and belief that UCFD1 submitted falsified and misleading information in its efforts seeking federal grants and other funding.

64. Plaintiff is informed and believes thereon that his conduct, investigation, reports and statements described herein were the reason that Defendant suspended him, ordered the

highly damaging investigation and Report, blocked his promotion to Battalion Chief, and was in the process of terminating his employment. Plaintiff was suspended and constructively discharged in violation of 31 USCA § 3730.

65. As a result of Defendant's unlawful actions, Plaintiff suffered and will continue to suffer economic damages in the form of lost wages, including back pay, front pay in lieu of reinstatement, and is entitled to recover such lost wages in an amount to be determined at trial. Defendant is also entitled to reinstatement to his former position.

66. As a result of Defendants' acts of retaliation Plaintiff is entitled to an award of twice the amount of his lost wages.

67. As a result of Defendant's unlawful actions, Plaintiff experienced non-economic damages. Plaintiff is entitled to recover non-economic damages in an amount to be determined at trial, but which is alleged to be not more than \$1,000,000.

68. Plaintiff is entitled to his costs, disbursements, pre- and post-judgment interest in the amount of 9% per annum, and reasonable attorney fees incurred herein pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3730(h)(2).

**THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**(Negligent Investigation)**  
**Against UCFD1 and FERRARIS**

69. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 68.

70. Plaintiff believes and, based on the circumstances and conduct described herein, alleges that UCFD1 retained FERRARIS for the purpose of building evidence to justify termination of Gillette's employment. The assignment to FERRARIS was to gather information and write a report to justify termination of Gillette's employment.

71. The Investigative Report is not neutral or fair and relies on speculation, rumor, and hearsay. The Investigative Report states, generally without specific details that witnesses confirmed the accusations by Hampton against Gillette. However, this is not the case. In general,

the testimony of other witnesses referred to is merely the witness reporting that Hampton told them about his accusations. the summarizing of the testimony of witnesses is not fair or neutral. The summaries do not accurately reflect what the witnesses actually said. Sometimes the testimony is summarized inaccurately. In other situations the statements are cherry picked or taken out of context to create a different impression than what the witnesses actually said.

72. The Report devolved into a fishing expedition searching for any kind of dirt on Gillette. Among other aspects, this is reflected in the fact that FERRARIS questioned individuals who admittedly had no knowledge about any interactions between Gillette and Hampton.

73. The Report mischaracterizes the text messages between Hampton and his girlfriend Kearns. The Report mentions the text messages between Hampton and his girlfriend as supporting Hampton's version of events. In fact, on that point they are merely more hearsay. However, what they do clearly reflect is a plan by Hampton and Kearns to try to get rid of Gillette because his counseling was a threat to Hampton successfully completing his probation. The text messages clearly establish that Hampton and Kearns were planning how to get Gillette into trouble.

74. The investigator failed to fully investigate the pertinent issues. The Investigator completely failed to investigate highly significant issues. One key issue here is whether the counseling meetings between Gillette and Hampton were justified. Gillette submits that Hampton had series performance problems that centered on his inappropriate and rude interactions with others. This would explain the private counseling meetings described derisively by the investigator as "closed door". It would also provide evidence that it was Hampton, not Gillette, who was prone to rude outbursts. The investigator totally failed to investigate the validity of Gillette's assertions and whether Hampton was frequently rude, disrespectful and inappropriate. The instances involving Hampton were completely ignored. Given the demonstrated tendency of Hampton to be rude and confrontational this would have affected the final determination particularly as to credibility.

75. The biased nature of the investigation is also clear from the fact that the investigator asked multiple witnesses in leading ways inviting them to attack Gillette's history of truthfulness. He asked over and over of multiple witnesses if they had any reason to think Gillette had ever in all the years of his employment had lied about anything. He did not ask any similar questions about any other witnesses or investigate the reputation of any other witness, including Hampton.

76. The Investigator failed to review or consider the performance reviews for Gillette discussed herein or his excellent work history and history of supervising firefighters and particularly probationary employees. He failed to take into consideration years of performance reviews evaluating Gillette as an officer who had excellent rapport with subordinates and describing him as a role model.

77. The investigator failed to even note that it was Gillette's job to issue counseling and warnings to probationary employee Hampton. The context of the events is totally left out of the findings.

78. Gillette provided the investigator with names of witnesses who would support his version of the events in the various incidents. However, the investigator failed to interview these witnesses.

79. The investigator went out of his way to try to find anyone who would say bad things about Gillette's credibility. He did not similarly investigate any other witness.

80. A properly conducted workplace investigation should be limited to a specific event or set of events or conduct. The investigator should not engage in a fishing expedition searching for adverse information on the subject. Notably the investigative report does not include a copy of any written complaint or even a description of what Hampton's complaint was. However, it is beyond question that the investigator went well beyond any complaint by Hampton and went to gather information and report on events that had nothing to do with

Hampton and were not improper and not the subject of any criticism or counseling of Gillette at the time.

81. FERRARIS failed to question key witnesses identified by Gillette to support his version of events. The investigator made no effort to obtain evidence from these witnesses. Also, the investigator failed to question Hampton about the details of his accusations so they could be verified or disproven. For most of the accusations Hampton was very vague and did not provide details such as time place those present or possible documentation. FERRARIS made no effort to locate documentation that concerning Hamptons accusations. FERRARIS failed to even review all of the performance reviews of Lt Gillette.

82. In conducting the investigation FERRARIS was acting on behalf of and as an agent of UCFD1. UCFD1 is responsible for the conduct of the investigation. UCFD1 gave the assignment to FERRARIS and is responsible for the scope and direction of the investigation.

83. FERRARIS and UCFD1 failed to provide Gillette with sufficient information to allow him to gather and present evidence in his own defense. The way in which the investigation was conducted deprived Gillette of a fair opportunity to gather evidence in support of his position. The decision to notify Gillette of its intent to terminate him was issued before Gillette had knowledge of the specifics of the accusations or a fair opportunity to present his side.

84. UCFD1 owes a duty of care to Gillette to act in good faith and to base adverse employment actions on reasonable grounds and evidence. If an investigation is to be conducted UCFD1 has a duty to assure it is conducted in a proper, impartial, and unbiased manner according to established standards for workplace investigations.

85. Presenting itself as a professional in workplace investigations and having been retained to conduct a fair and impartial investigation of any allegations against Gillette, FERRARIS owed a duty of care to conduct the investigation in a fair impartial and proper manner. The potential and foreseeable damage to Gillette if not properly conducted also created

a duty of care on the part of FERRARIS towards Gillette. The harm to Gillette from an improperly conducted investigation was foreseeable.

86. Gillette was an intended beneficiary of the agreement between UCFD1 and FERRARIS which created a duty on the part of FERRARIS to conduct the investigation in a fair, impartial and professional manner. For this reason also FERRARIS owed a duty to Gillette.

87. UCFD1 and FERRARIS breached their duty to failed to conduct the investigation in a fair, impartial, and proper manner.

88. The conduct of the investigation and the Report are highly damaging to Gillette and harmed his career and his ability to pursue his career in the future. The harsh, one-sided, and damaging statements in the Report and the Notice, which are now public records, are unwarranted and not supported by evidence.

89. As a result of Defendant's unlawful actions, Plaintiff suffered and will continue to suffer economic damages in the form of lost wages, including back pay, front pay in lieu of reinstatement, and is entitled to recover such lost wages in an amount to be determined at trial.

90. Plaintiff is entitled to his costs, disbursements, pre- and post-judgment interest in the amount of 9% per annum, and reasonable attorney fees incurred herein

**FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**Interference with Economic Opportunity**  
**Against FERRARIS**

91. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 90.

92. Gillette had an ongoing contractual employment relationship with UCFD1 and Defendant FERRARIS knew of the employment relationship. Gillette had invested years of effort in his career at UCFD1 and had an excellent performance record.

93. By the actions described herein and motivated by personal animosity and retaliatory motive as set for the herein, Defendants intentionally interfered with the contractual relationship between Gillette and UCFD1. The acts of interference included, without limitation the following: conduct of the investigation in a negligent and biased manner; preparing the Report which was filled with false and misleading statements and conclusions; misrepresenting the evidence in the Report; communications to UCFD1 about Gillette; the selection of interviewees and questions to be asked to skew the report against Gillette; failing to report any positive or exculpatory facts or information received concerning Gillette; disclosing the false and damaging accusations to the interviewees and others in the course of the investigation; failing to assure that the nature of the accusations was not disseminated to others; ignoring and leaving out the facts and evidence that would put Gillette in a good light; misleading statements to UCFD1 concerning Gillette's conduct both in the Report and otherwise; and refusing to consider evidence and facts presented by Gillette.

94. As a result of Defendant's unlawful actions, Plaintiff suffered and will continue to suffer economic damages in the form of lost wages, including back pay, front pay in lieu of reinstatement, and is entitled to recover such lost wages in an amount to be determined at trial.

95. Plaintiff is entitled to his costs, disbursements, and pre- and post-judgment interest in the amount of 9% per annum.

96. Defendant, in undertaking the actions alleged herein, acted with malice or has shown a reckless and outrageous indifference to a highly unreasonable risk of harm to Plaintiff and has acted with a conscious indifference to the safety and welfare of Plaintiff. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of punitive damages and seeks an award of punitive damages in an amount of not more than \$1,000,000 dollars.



**FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**Defamation Per Se**

97. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 96.

98. As set out above Defendants made false and misleading statements about Gillette that defamed him in his career and profession. These false statements include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a. Statements to employees and volunteers about the investigation and Gillette's leave of absence
- b. The content of the report of investigation including, without limitation, accusations that Gillette was abusive to a subordinate and accusations of false testimony on Gillette's part
- c. Statements made to witnesses as part of the investigation suggesting Gillette is dishonest and untruthful and is abusive to subordinates
- d. Statements in the letter giving notice of intent to terminate including, without limitation, statements that Gillette was abusive to a subordinate and is untruthful and dishonest

99. Defendants made these false and misleading statements with knowledge that they were false or with reckless disregard as to their truth or falsity. Defendants acted with malice as reflected in the manner of the investigation; Cunningham's report contains many intentional misstatements, partial quotes, and quotes taken out of context all of which have the effect of falsely and maliciously painting Plaintiff as a lying, dishonest, abusive and incompetent firefighter, EMT and supervisor.

100. Defendants published the false statements when they were disclosed to other employees and volunteers in communications about the investigation. The false statements were

also published because they became part of the public record and are subject to disclosure to the public on request.

101. In making the false and defamatory statements defendants acted intentionally and with malice in retaliation for the reports by Gillette of the discrepancies in the budget. In undertaking the actions alleged herein, Defendants acted with malice or have shown a reckless and outrageous indifference to a highly unreasonable risk of harm to Plaintiff and has acted with a conscious indifference to the safety and welfare of Plaintiff. Furthermore, that Defendants acted with malice is reflected in the manner of the conduct of the investigation; the investigative report and notice of intent to terminate contains many intentional misstatements, hearsay statements, partial quotes, and quotes taken out of context all of which have the effect of falsely and maliciously painting Plaintiff as untruthful, dishonest and abusive in his role as a supervisor EMT.

102. As a result of Defendant's defamation, Plaintiff suffered and will continue to suffer economic damages in the form of damage to his reputation and career. His reputation and career as a manager and supervisor has been damaged. He also suffered loss of his employment with UCFD1 resulting in lost wages and benefits and loss of his promotion to Battalion Chief. Plaintiff also seeks compensatory damages in an amount to be proven at trial for pain and suffering due to mental anguish, humiliation, loss of self-esteem and dignity as well as any other relief the court sees fit to order. Plaintiff also seeks punitive damages against Defendant Ferraris for his intentional and malicious conduct.

103. Plaintiff is entitled to his costs, disbursements, and pre- and post-judgment interest in the amount of 9% per annum.

104. Defendant Ferraris, in undertaking the actions alleged herein, acted with malice or has shown a reckless and outrageous indifference to a highly unreasonable risk of harm to Plaintiff and has acted with a conscious indifference to the safety and welfare of Plaintiff.

Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of punitive damages and seeks an award of punitive damages in an amount of not more than \$1,000,000 dollars.

**SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**29 USC 1983 Due process Property Right to Employment**  
**Against UCFD1**

105. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 104.

106. UCFD1 is a public agency. UCFD1 is a Rural Fire Protection Special District established under Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 478 and it is funded through real property taxes assessed by the Umatilla County tax assessor and the Oregon Department of Revenue

107. As an employee of this government entity, Gillette had a constitutionally protected property right in his employment with UCFD1. Based on the written agreements, the applicable rules, policies, and practices and the specific representations and acts by representatives of UCFD1, he had an expectation that his employment would continue and could be terminated only for just cause and after a hearing. He also had an expectation of ongoing employment based on positive evaluations, promotions and statements by management of UCFD1.

108. Pursuant to the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution UCFD1 cannot deprive Gillette of his property rights without due process of law, including both substantive and procedural due process. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1983 Gillette seeks recovery for the deprivation of his constitutional rights.

109. The actions of Defendants described herein were undertaken under color of law. The Chief Scott Stanton is the final decision and policy making authority within KCFD1.

110. Gillette had a substantive due process right to be terminated only for just cause. There was not just cause for his termination.

111. Gillette had a procedural right under his employment agreement, under the policies of UCFD1 and under constitutional law to a hearing before his termination became final. He was denied such a hearing. He also had a procedural right to present evidence, question witnesses and other aspects of a full and fair hearing. He was denied these rights.

112. As a result of the actions of the Defendant UCFD1 as described herein, Gillette has suffered lost compensation and employment benefits and has suffered other damage including, without limitation, loss of professional reputation and status, humiliation, loss of career opportunity, emotional distress, and stress. Plaintiff has also incurred attorney fees and costs.

113. UCFD1's actions against Gillette were undertaken motivated by evil motive or intent in that they were retaliation for his reporting of false statements in the budget reporting. Defendants' actions were undertaken with reckless or callous indifference to Gillette's federally protected rights. Gillette repeatedly asked for an opportunity to defend himself and protested against the accusations and the decisions taken with respect to him. However, his protests were disregarded and he was denied any fair opportunity to defend himself. Accordingly, an award of punitive damages is appropriate in this action.

**SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**29 USC 1983 Due Process Liberty Right to Reputation**  
**Against UCFD1**

114. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 113.

115. Gillette has a liberty interest in his personal and professional reputation protected pursuant to the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution. The accusations, the investigation, and the REPORT led to termination of his employment and seriously damaged his personal and professional reputation and his career opportunities.

116. Gillette had a due process right to a hearing to defend his reputation. The accusations by UCFD1 and FERRARIS included personal attacks on his honesty and integrity in addition to attacks on his professionalism and his job performance. All of these are now public records subject to disclosure on request. The process of the investigation and the termination of his employment caused these accusations to be spread throughout the community and to others in the firefighting community. The abrupt termination of his employment when others in the industry would have expected him to remain did damage to his professional standing and reputation in the firefighting community. As a result of this damage he and his family have suffered humiliation and embarrassment and his ability to pursue his chosen career has been seriously damaged. In addition, in order to truthfully respond to interview questions in the course of application for other positions Gillette will be forced to disclose and discuss the accusations. This self-publication also does substantial damage to his professional standing and reputation.

117. As a result of the actions of the Defendants as described herein, Gillette has suffered lost compensation and employment benefits and has suffered other damage including, without limitation, loss of professional reputation and status, humiliation, loss of career opportunity, emotional distress, and stress. Plaintiff has also incurred attorney fees and costs of litigation.

118. UCFD1's actions against Gillette were undertaken motivated by evil motive or intent in that they were retaliation for his reporting of false statements in the budget reporting. Defendants' actions were undertaken with reckless or callous indifference to Gillette's federally protected rights. Gillette repeatedly asked for an opportunity to defend himself and protested against the accusations and the decisions taken with respect to him. However, his protests were disregarded and he was denied any fair opportunity to defend himself. Accordingly, an award of punitive damages is appropriate in this action.

**EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF**  
**Negligent Retention and Supervision**  
**Against UCFD1**

119. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 118.

120. As set forth above UCFD1 had a duty to assure that a fair, neutral, and proper investigation was conducted. The Defendant also expressly promised that the investigation would be conducted in a fair and impartial manner by a neutral outside investigator. In addition, UCFD1 had a duty to supervise the investigation adequately. It also had a duty to assure that Gillette was treated fairly and that his employment was not terminated except by following the proper procedures and after a fair hearing. Once UCFD1 embarked on the investigation it had a duty to see it through a proper conclusion and to make a fair final determination as to the accusations. UCFD1 had a duty in selecting FERRARIS and giving them assignments which could cause great harm to Gillette to make those selections carefully and appropriately.

121. UCFD1 was negligent in the selection, retention, and failure to supervise FERRARIS. FERRARIS was not sufficiently experienced in workplace investigations and was biased against Gillette. His experience was in conducting investigations to prove a particular point and not neutral or impartial investigations.

122. The actions described herein are contrary to the actions that a reasonable employer would have undertaken in these circumstances.

123. The negligent retention and negligent supervision alleged herein, was the proximate cause of damage to Gillette in the loss of his employment and damage to his professional reputation. The lack of a proper investigation led to the termination of his employment and deprived him of the opportunity to clear his name.

124. As a result of the actions of the Defendants as described herein, Gillette has suffered lost compensation and employment benefits and has suffered other damage including, without limitation, loss of professional reputation and status, humiliation, loss of career opportunity, emotional distress, and stress.

**JURY DEMAND**

Plaintiff demands a jury trial on all questions of fact or combined questions of law and fact raised in this Complaint as to which a jury is permitted.

**PRAYER FOR RELIEF**

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for the relief as set forth in this Complaint as follows:

1. Lost wages
2. An additional amount equal to lost wages
3. Reinstatement to his former position
4. Consequential damages
5. Non-economic damages
6. Punitive damages in an amount to be determined at trial
7. Prejudgment interest in the amount of 9% per annum
8. Attorney fees and costs
9. such other relief that the Court finds just and equitable.

Dated this 12<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2024



---

Karen E. Ford Esq.

Attorney for Plaintiff

JS 44 (Rev. 03/24)

### CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

<p><b>I. (a) PLAINTIFFS</b></p> <p style="text-align: center;">Jeremy Gillette</p> <p><b>(b)</b> County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff _____ (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)</p> <p><b>(c)</b> Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)                  Karen E. Ford, Ford &amp; Assoc. LLC                  PO Box 287                  Carmel CA 93921</p>	<p><b>DEFENDANTS</b></p> <p style="text-align: center;">UMATILLA COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #1; JAMES C. FERRARIS; FERRARIS INVESTIGATIONS &amp;</p> <p style="text-align: center;">County of Residence of First Listed Defendant _____ (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)</p> <p>NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.</p> <p style="text-align: center;">Attorneys (If Known)</p>
---	---

<p><b>II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION</b> (Place an "X" in One Box Only)</p> <table style="width:100%;"> <tr> <td><input type="checkbox"/> 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff</td> <td><input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)</td> </tr> <tr> <td><input type="checkbox"/> 2 U.S. Government Defendant</td> <td><input type="checkbox"/> 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)</td> </tr> </table>	<input type="checkbox"/> 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)	<input type="checkbox"/> 2 U.S. Government Defendant	<input type="checkbox"/> 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)	<p><b>III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES</b> (Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff and One Box for Defendant)</p> <table style="width:100%;"> <tr> <td style="text-align: center;">PTF</td> <td style="text-align: center;">DEF</td> <td></td> <td style="text-align: center;">PTF</td> <td style="text-align: center;">DEF</td> </tr> <tr> <td style="text-align: center;"><input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 1</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 1</td> <td>Citizen of This State</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 4</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 4</td> </tr> <tr> <td></td> <td></td> <td style="text-align: center;">Incorporated or Principal Place of Business In This State</td> <td></td> <td></td> </tr> <tr> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 2</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 2</td> <td>Citizen of Another State</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 5</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 5</td> </tr> <tr> <td></td> <td></td> <td style="text-align: center;">Incorporated and Principal Place of Business In Another State</td> <td></td> <td></td> </tr> <tr> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 3</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 3</td> <td>Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 6</td> <td style="text-align: center;"><input type="checkbox"/> 6</td> </tr> <tr> <td></td> <td></td> <td style="text-align: center;">Foreign Nation</td> <td></td> <td></td> </tr> </table>	PTF	DEF		PTF	DEF	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 1	<input type="checkbox"/> 1	Citizen of This State	<input type="checkbox"/> 4	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 4			Incorporated or Principal Place of Business In This State			<input type="checkbox"/> 2	<input type="checkbox"/> 2	Citizen of Another State	<input type="checkbox"/> 5	<input type="checkbox"/> 5			Incorporated and Principal Place of Business In Another State			<input type="checkbox"/> 3	<input type="checkbox"/> 3	Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	<input type="checkbox"/> 6	<input type="checkbox"/> 6			Foreign Nation		
<input type="checkbox"/> 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)																																							
<input type="checkbox"/> 2 U.S. Government Defendant	<input type="checkbox"/> 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)																																							
PTF	DEF		PTF	DEF																																				
<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 1	<input type="checkbox"/> 1	Citizen of This State	<input type="checkbox"/> 4	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 4																																				
		Incorporated or Principal Place of Business In This State																																						
<input type="checkbox"/> 2	<input type="checkbox"/> 2	Citizen of Another State	<input type="checkbox"/> 5	<input type="checkbox"/> 5																																				
		Incorporated and Principal Place of Business In Another State																																						
<input type="checkbox"/> 3	<input type="checkbox"/> 3	Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country	<input type="checkbox"/> 6	<input type="checkbox"/> 6																																				
		Foreign Nation																																						

**IV. NATURE OF SUIT** (Place an "X" in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

CONTRACT	TORTS	FORFEITURE/PENALTY	BANKRUPTCY	OTHER STATUTES	
<input type="checkbox"/> 110 Insurance <input type="checkbox"/> 120 Marine <input type="checkbox"/> 130 Miller Act <input type="checkbox"/> 140 Negotiable Instrument <input type="checkbox"/> 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment <input type="checkbox"/> 151 Medicare Act <input type="checkbox"/> 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes Veterans) <input type="checkbox"/> 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits <input type="checkbox"/> 160 Stockholders' Suits <input type="checkbox"/> 190 Other Contract <input type="checkbox"/> 195 Contract Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 196 Franchise	<p><b>PERSONAL INJURY</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 310 Airplane <input type="checkbox"/> 315 Airplane Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 320 Assault, Libel & Slander <input type="checkbox"/> 330 Federal Employers' Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 340 Marine <input type="checkbox"/> 345 Marine Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 350 Motor Vehicle <input type="checkbox"/> 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 360 Other Personal Injury <input type="checkbox"/> 362 Personal Injury - Medical Malpractice	<p><b>PERSONAL INJURY</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 367 Health Care/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability	<p><b>LABOR</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 <input type="checkbox"/> 690 Other <input type="checkbox"/> 710 Fair Labor Standards Act <input type="checkbox"/> 720 Labor/Management Relations <input type="checkbox"/> 740 Railway Labor Act <input type="checkbox"/> 751 Family and Medical Leave Act <input type="checkbox"/> 790 Other Labor Litigation <input type="checkbox"/> 791 Employee Retirement Income Security Act	<p><b>LABOR</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 <input type="checkbox"/> 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157 <p><b>INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 820 Copyrights <input type="checkbox"/> 830 Patent <input type="checkbox"/> 835 Patent - Abbreviated New Drug Application <input type="checkbox"/> 840 Trademark <input type="checkbox"/> 880 Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016 <p><b>SOCIAL SECURITY</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 861 HIA (1395ff) <input type="checkbox"/> 862 Black Lung (923) <input type="checkbox"/> 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) <input type="checkbox"/> 864 SSID Title XVI <input type="checkbox"/> 865 RSI (405(g)) <p><b>FEDERAL TAX SUITS</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant) <input type="checkbox"/> 871 IRS—Third Party 26 USC 7609	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 375 False Claims Act <input type="checkbox"/> 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a)) <input type="checkbox"/> 400 State Reapportionment <input type="checkbox"/> 410 Antitrust <input type="checkbox"/> 430 Banks and Banking <input type="checkbox"/> 450 Commerce <input type="checkbox"/> 460 Deportation <input type="checkbox"/> 470 Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations <input type="checkbox"/> 480 Consumer Credit (15 USC 1681 or 1692) <input type="checkbox"/> 485 Telephone Consumer Protection Act <input type="checkbox"/> 490 Cable/Sat TV <input type="checkbox"/> 850 Securities/Commodities/Exchange <input type="checkbox"/> 890 Other Statutory Actions <input type="checkbox"/> 891 Agricultural Acts <input type="checkbox"/> 893 Environmental Matters <input type="checkbox"/> 895 Freedom of Information Act <input type="checkbox"/> 896 Arbitration <input type="checkbox"/> 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision <input type="checkbox"/> 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes
<p><b>REAL PROPERTY</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 210 Land Condemnation <input type="checkbox"/> 220 Foreclosure <input type="checkbox"/> 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment <input type="checkbox"/> 240 Torts to Land <input type="checkbox"/> 245 Tort Product Liability <input type="checkbox"/> 290 All Other Real Property	<p><b>CIVIL RIGHTS</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 440 Other Civil Rights <input type="checkbox"/> 441 Voting <input type="checkbox"/> 442 Employment <input type="checkbox"/> 443 Housing/Accommodations <input type="checkbox"/> 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment <input type="checkbox"/> 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - Other <input type="checkbox"/> 448 Education	<p><b>PRISONER PETITIONS</b></p> <p><b>Habeas Corpus:</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 463 Alien Detainee <input type="checkbox"/> 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence <input type="checkbox"/> 530 General <input type="checkbox"/> 535 Death Penalty	<p><b>IMMIGRATION</b></p> <input type="checkbox"/> 462 Naturalization Application <input type="checkbox"/> 465 Other Immigration Actions		

**V. ORIGIN** (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 1 Original Proceeding	<input type="checkbox"/> 2 Removed from State Court	<input type="checkbox"/> 3 Remanded from Appellate Court	<input type="checkbox"/> 4 Reinstated or Reopened	<input type="checkbox"/> 5 Transferred from Another District (specify)	<input type="checkbox"/> 6 Multidistrict Litigation - Transfer	<input type="checkbox"/> 8 Multidistrict Litigation - Direct File
---	---	--	---	--	--	---

**VI. CAUSE OF ACTION**

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):  
 31 U.S.C.A. § 3730.

Brief description of cause:  
 Former employee terminated in retaliation for reporting false budget representations violation of federal and Oregon law

**VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:**

<input type="checkbox"/> CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.	<b>DEMAND \$</b> 1,500,000	CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: <b>JURY DEMAND:</b> <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
---	-------------------------------	---

**VIII. RELATED CASE(S) IF ANY** (See instructions):

JUDGE \_\_\_\_\_ DOCKET NUMBER \_\_\_\_\_

DATE: June 12, 2024

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

**FOR OFFICE USE ONLY**

RECEIPT # _____	AMOUNT _____	APPLYING IFP _____	JUDGE _____	MAG. JUDGE _____
-----------------	--------------	--------------------	-------------	------------------



AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

District of Oregon

Jeremy Gillette

Plaintiff(s)

v.

UMATILLA COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #1; JAMES C. FERRARIS; FERRARIS INVESTIGATIONS & CONSULTING, LLC

Defendant(s)

Civil Action No.

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant's name and address) UMATILLA COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #1 320 S 1st St, Hermiston, OR 97838

JAMES C. FERRARIS and FERRARIS INVESTIGATIONS & CONSULTING, LLC 2355 State Street STE 101 Salem OR 97301

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and address are:

Karen E Ford PO Box 287 Carmel, CA 93921 via e mail karen@fordslaw.com

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

Civil Action No. \_\_\_\_\_

**PROOF OF SERVICE**

*(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))*

This summons for *(name of individual and title, if any)* \_\_\_\_\_  
was received by me on *(date)* \_\_\_\_\_ .

I personally served the summons on the individual at *(place)* \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_ on *(date)* \_\_\_\_\_ ; or

I left the summons at the individual's residence or usual place of abode with *(name)* \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,  
on *(date)* \_\_\_\_\_ , and mailed a copy to the individual's last known address; or

I served the summons on *(name of individual)* \_\_\_\_\_ , who is  
designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of *(name of organization)* \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_ on *(date)* \_\_\_\_\_ ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because \_\_\_\_\_ ; or

Other *(specify)*: \_\_\_\_\_

My fees are \$ \_\_\_\_\_ for travel and \$ \_\_\_\_\_ for services, for a total of \$ \_\_\_\_\_ 0.00 \_\_\_\_\_ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
*Server's signature*

\_\_\_\_\_  
*Printed name and title*

\_\_\_\_\_  
*Server's address*

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc: